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R, IMARY COURT AT GEORGE TOWN

Cause No. SC 20
John Patrick Bodden Plaintiff
P.O. Box 1521GT KY1-1110
43 Stingray Drive, South Sound
AND British Airways Plc Defendant

Owen Roberts International Airpart

Plaint

To the Defendant

Owen Roberts International Airport
Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands:

THIS PLAINT has been issued against you by the above—named Plaintiff in respect.of the ¢laim
set out on the pages that follow.

Within 14 days after service of this Plaint on you, counting the day of service you must either
satisfy the claim or return to the Court Office, PO Box 495GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, the
accompanying Acknowledgment of Service form stating therein whether you intend to contest
this action. If you intend to defend the action, in whole or i part, you must set.out full
particulars of your defence in the space provided in the Acknowledgement of Service form,

if you fail to satisfy the claim or fail to return the Acknowledgement of Service form containing
full particulars of your defence, the Plaintiff may apply for a default judgment without any
further notice to you.

¥
Issued this  day of §§’,P 20 ;
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PARTICULARS OF CLAIM

1. OnMarch 1, 2023, as part of a planned vacation to Italy that had been deferred for
many years due to the Covid-19 pandemic, Plaintiff used the trave! site Expedia to
purchase two return tickets to London on Defendant’s filght 0252 with departure date
of lune 10, 2023, returning on June 24, 2023, The booking reference given by Expedia
was WYGPYS, and the electronic ticket numbers were 1252154792509 and
1252154792508, The cost of the tickets was US52300.36 and an additional US5281.56
was pald, ironically, for “Trip Protection Plus” for a total of USS2581.92. A copy of the
Expedia receipt is attached to this Plaint as Exhibitl.

2. OnMarch 2, 2023, and again on March 3, 2023, Plaintiff used the travel site Expedia to
purchase additional tickets from Defendant for onward passage from London to
Florence on June 12, 2023, and return passage from Bologna to London on June 20,
2023,

3. OnMarch 5, 2023, Plaintiff entered passport and other pre-flight Informatien for John
Patrick Bodden and Nancy Lee Bodden into the Defendant’s reservation system using
booking reference WYGPYS, '

4. On March 6, 2023, Defendant (using a no-reply email address) acknowledged receiving
the personal information updates for reservation WYGPYS with subject “Confirmation
of changes to booking WYGPY8” stating “This s confirmation of ch‘anges made to your
British Airways booking”, A copy of that emall is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit2A.

5. OnMarch 9, 2023, Plaintiff checked his MasterCard balance online at Butterfield Bank
and noticed pending charges for two additional return tckets with numbers
1252154792503 and 1252154792502, A copy of Plaintiff's MasterCard statement for
March 2023 showlng the purchases with the sacond charge highlighted is attached to
this Plaint as Exhibit3A.

6. On March 9, 2023, Plaintiff contacted Expedia via their customer support portal to
report the double charge. The Expedia agent stated that they could only see one set of
charges by the Defendant, and suggested to Plaintiff that the second set of charges on
Plaintiff’s credit card would probably “fall away” after 6 to 9 business cays. Defendant
may wish to note how easy Expedia makes it for thelr customers to contact them with
queries, complalnts, or to make changes. A copy of the March 8, 2023, conversation
with Expedia where Plaintiff made the now prescient statement “Well ft’s $2200.36 off
my credit card imit and there may be more of the same.” is attached to this Plaint as
Exhibit4A,

7. 0On March 14, 2023, Plaintiff contacted Expedia via their custorer support portal as the
second charge they had suggested might fall away was now on the final March 2023
MasterCard statement, Plaintiff was assured by Expedia that they had no record of the
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second charge being made by the Defendant. A copy of the March 14, 2023,
conhversatioh with Expedia is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit4B.

8. On March 14, 2023, Plaintiff found what was thought to be a Defendant’s Customer
Service site where this double charge could be reparted, and hopefully the second
charge would be very quickly refunded. Defendant sent and automated response (using
a no-reply emall address] with incident number stating “Thank you for contacting
British Alrways Customer Relations. We'll reply to your query as soon as possible”, A
copy of that emall is attached to this Plaint as ExhibitSA.

9. On March 15, 2023, Defendant responded a second time (using a no-reply emall
address) with same Incident number reference stating “Fm sorry to disappoint you that
we are unable to assist you through this email channel” and directing Plaintiff to call
their 1-800-number in the USA. A capy of that email is attached to this Plaint as
Exhibit5R,

10. After calling Defandant’s USA phone number 1-800-AIRWAYS many times, at different
hours and over several days, the response always being “due to heavy call volumes we
are unable to process your coll” and then disconnecting, Plaintiff finally got through to
someone at a call center who informed Plaintiff that any refund would have to be
claimed through Plaintiff’s credit card company.

11, Plaintiff wishes to state that Defendant’s 1-800-AIRWAYS number Is promptiy answered
with the customary preamble followed by three options, here paraphrased ast

a. Tochange a booking press “1”

b, To make a booking press “2”

c. Foranything else prass “3”
Plaintiff eventually discovered that the only way to get through to Defendant by phone
was to select option 1 or 2, and after being put through to an agent to quickly explain
the problem.

12. On March 23, 2023, Plaintiff submitted a credit card dispute form to Butterfield Bank to
have the second charge reversed,

13. On April 21, 2023, Plalntiff purchased tickets for Great Western Railways train from
Penzance to London, and roundtrip tickets for Heathrow Express between Heathrow
Airport and Paddington Station. These charges can be seen on Plaintiff’s MasterCard
statement for May 2023 which is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit3B.

14. On April 24, 2023, Plaintiff purchased tickets for Great Western Railways overnight
Steeper Traln from Paddington Station to Penzance Cornwall for US5285.48 which can
be seen on Plaintiff's MasterCard statement for May 2023 which is attachad to this
Plaint as Exhibit3B.

15. On May 18, 2023, US52300.36 was credited back to Plaintiff's MasterCard account after
Defendant did not respond to MasterCard giving notice of the payment reversal.
Plaintiff’s MasterCard statement for June 2023, shows the $2300.36 reversal as well as
the finance charge of US$48.07 which Plaintiff paid on the outstanding US$2300.36
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balance for the two previous consecutive months because Defendant did not respond
to MasterCard Is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit3C.

16. On May 24, 2023, Plaintiff logged on to Defendant’s reservation system and found that
booking reference WYGPYS was no longer there, Plaintiff contacted Defendant via their
customer relations portal to report that the reservation had been deleted, and
Defendant responded (using a no-reply email address) directing Plaintiff to call the
Defendant’s 1-800-AIRWAYS number for customer service as they are “unable to make
alterations to baokings, or cuncel them, via emuoil”. A copy of that emall is attached to
this Plaint as Exhibit2B, '

17. On May 24, 2023, Plaintiff once again went through the process of contacting
Defendant via 1-800-AIRWAYS, with the newfound knowledge to select “1” or “2”
instead of “3"” at the prompt, and was advised that Confirmation WXUM2H was the
booking reference to be used, which was assaclated with the duplicate charge, and the
electronic ticket numbers were 1252154792503 and 1252154792502,

18, Plaintiff was now satisfied that everything was in order, and that Defendant had
canceled the first booking WYGPYS, with associated electronic ticket numbers
1252154792509 and 1252154792508 of the double charge rather than the second set of
ticket numbers 1252154792503 and 1252154792502 shown on the MasterCard statement.

19, Plaintiff proceeded to re-enter passport and other pre-flight information for John
Patrick Bodden and Nancy Lee Bodden into the Defendant’s reservation system using
booking reference WXUMZH. A copy of the last of several emails Defendant sent {using
a no-reply email address) dated May 26, 2023, affirming the validity of reservation
WXUMZH is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit2(.

20. On June 1, 2023, The U.S, Depariment of Transportation’s {Department or DOT) Office
of Aviation Consumer Protection filed a Consent Order against Defendant and assessed
a civil penalty of 51,100,000 for violations of the US Aviation Consumar Protection
Regulations after determining that Defendant had engaged in unfair and deceptive
practices. Plaintiff consicers this Consent Order as relevant to this Plaint as the 1-800-
AIRWAYS is the same number that Cayman Islands customers are directed to call. A
copy of that Consent Order, with relevant portions of text highlighted, is attached to
this Plaint as Exhibité. ‘

21, Plaintiff acknowledges that Defendant did not admit to the violations described in the
Consent Order and only entered into the agreement to avold litigation. However,
Plaintiff personally experienced many of the same unfair and deceptive practices
detailed in the Consent Order, and one specific statement In the first paragraph of
Defendant’s response to the Consent Order, namely "British Airways developed an
automated option to process non-complex refunds” will be cited in support of many
statements Plaintiff will proffer further along in this Plaint.

22, On June 9, 2023, Plaintiff received an email (using a no-reply emall address) from
Defendant with Subject: Your Departure WXUMR2H: 10 Jun 2023 18:05 stating, “We look
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Jorward to welcoming you on board flight BAO252 from Grand Caymaon on 10 June
2023 at 18:05”", A copy of the email is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit2D.

23.0n June 9, 2023, Plaintiff attempted to check-In online but was informed that the
process could not be completad, no reasan given, and that Plaintif should report in
person to the Defendant’s ticket counter for check-In.

24, On June 10, 2023, Plaintiff arrived at the Defandant’s check-in counter several hours
before departure time and was informed that the reservations with booking reference
WXUM2ZH had been cancelled and the money returned to Plaintiff’s account. Plaintiff
uneguivocally declares that no money has been returned to Plaintiff’s account other
than the disputed charge, which was reversed by MasterCard on May 18, 2023, as
shown on Plaintiff's MasterCard statement for June 2023 which is attached to this Plalnt
as Exhibit3C,

25. The FADS employee who was acting as the check-in agent for the Defendant and who
was In contact with one of the Defendant’s representatives on her cell phone, could not
answer the question “by whom and for what reason?”, but informed Plalntiff that if he
wished to board the flight, he would have to pay US$2946.56 for vet another set of
round-trip tickets. This is despite Plaintiff showing the Defandant’s agent the emall from
Defendant attached as Exhibit2D, as well as the online check-In information clearly
visible on Plaintiff's iPhone showing booking reference WXUM2H with ticket humber
1252154792503 as active In Defendant’s reservation system. A screenshot of the still active
reservation with ticket number 1252154792503 whick was shown to the Defendant’s agent
at the chéck-n counter, was saved at 5:40pm by the Plaintiff while waiting in the departure
lounge and Is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit7.

26, Defendant was fully aware that Plalntiff had onward connecting flights to ftaly with
Defendant and Plaintiff had no ather option of getting to Landon in time to make those
connections. On June 10, 2023, Plaintiff reluctantly pald Defendant a third time for the
same flight 0252 that was first booked and paid for on March 1, 2023, with new
booking reference RNSCGP and ticket numbers 1252109754700 and 1252109754701,
Plaintiff's MasterCard statement for July 2023 showing the US$2946.56 charge is
attached 1o this Plaint as Exhibit3D.

27. On lune 10, 2023, Plaintiff and his wife boarded Defendant’s flight 0252 bound for
London to start thelr vacation with U$$2946.56 lopped of the credit available to tham,
or almost USS650 more than the US3$2300 in the presclent statement attached to this
Plaint as Exhibit4A.

28. On June 18, 2023, Plalntiff received an emall from Great Western Rallway reminding
hitn of his upcoming trip on the Night Riviera Sleeper from London to Penzance on June
20, 2023, with scheduled departure at 23:45 and datalls on the cozy cabin that awaits
him. A copy of that email Is attached to this Plaint as Exhibitg.

29. On June 20, 2023, Defendant’s flight 0545 from Bologna to London was delayed saveral
haurs beyond the scheduled 20:35 arrival time causing Plaintiff to miss the Night Riviera
Sleeper 23:45 departure from Paddington Station to Penzance. With Heathrow Express
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tickets already in hand for the 15-minute journey from Heathrow to Paddington Station
and traveling with carry-on luggage only, there would have been plenty of time
between the scheduled arrival of Defendant’s fiight and the scheduled departure of the
Great Western Rallway train for Plaintiff to make the connection. Plaintiff, with tired
and very angry wife In tow, checked at least ten hotels on the streets in and around
Paddington Station before finding the last vacancy at the Royal Cambridge Hote! at
12:40am for a few hours rest before catching the 6:00am traln to Penzance, now with
coach class tickets. Instead of falling asfeep in a cozy cabin listening to the soothing
sound of the traln on raillway tracks, Plaintiff spent 4 restless hours listening to the
squawking sound of seagulls as there was a heatwave in London and the Royal
Cambridge Hotel doesn’t have A/C, so the windows had to be [eft open the few hours
Plaintiff spent trying to get some rest. A copy of the hotel receipt is attached to this
Plaint as Exhibit9,

On June 26, 2023, after returning home Plalntiff filed an online complaint with
Defendant requesting refunds specifically for the US$2946.56 return flight Cayman to
London which the Plaintiff paid for three times, as well as other expenses and
inconveniences suffered by Plaintiff due to the late arrival of Defendant’s flight from
Bologha on June 20, 2023, : : '

On lune 26, 2023, Defendant sent an automated response (using a no-reply emall
address) with subject “Your British Airways cuse reference 25172123" stating “We ore
currently experiencing exceptionally high volumes, so you might have to waoit g while
Jor a response, however, we will aim to get back to you as soon us possible”. A copy of
that email Is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit10A.

On July 14, 2023, Defendant sent an automated update (using a no-reply email address)
for case reference 25172123 with subject “Thank you for hearing with us” stating “"Our
Customer Relutions team are really busy at the moment, which means it’s taking
fonger than we'd like to get back to you with o full response. Please rest assured we’ll
be in touch as soon as possible”. A copy of that emall is attached to this Plaint as-
Exhiblt10B,

On July 28, 2023, Defendant sent another automated update {using a no-raply email
address}) for case reference 25172123 with subject “We’ll be on the case soon” stating
“We're sorry we've not been back in touch about your Customer Relations cose and we
appreciate your patience. We know you've been waiting for a response for 28 days,
but please rest assured we haven’t forgotien about your case and we'll be in touch as
soon as we can.” A copy of that emall Is attached to this Plaint as Exhibitl0c.

On August 4, 2023, Defendant sent yat another automated update (using a ho-reply
email address) for case reference 25172123 with subject “Sorry you're still waiting”
stating “We're really sorry you're still waiting for o response. from us. We know it’s
been a long time since you contacted us and this isn’t the service you should expect.” A
copy of that email Is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit10D.
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35. On August 7, 2023, Defendant sent an email (using & no-reply email address) for
Plaintiff’s case reference 25172123 with subject “Your Response from BA Customer
Relations”. The canned response gives every Indication that nobody hothered to read
the complaint and ended with “For any applicable refund, Pd suggest you contact your
travel agent directly”, This is quite astonlshing considering Plaintiff was asking for a
refund of tickets purchased directly from Defendant at Owen Roberts Airport on June
10, 2023. In and of itself, the very first sentence of the email boggles the mind “We’re
very sorry to heor you had some technical issues with booking your flight online How
anyone could come to that conclusion after reading the information submitted by
Plaintiff beggars belief, A copy of that email, sighed by pseudonym Sahil Sayyed on
behaif of British Airways Customer Relations, is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit10E.

36, On August 7, 2023, after reviewing Defendant’s ast response, and thinking perhaps
Defendant had been overwhelmed with too much information, Plaintiff tried once again
to get a refund with a scaled back request over reservation RNSCEP with US$2946.56
paid directly to Defendant at Owen Roberts Alrport on June 10, 2023, with no travel
agent Involvement. The new claim was limited to this single ftem and left out previous
request of refunds for delayed flights from Bologna, missed overnight sleeper train to
Penzance, and having to search for a hotel after midnight near Paddington Station to
have a few hours rest before catching the morning train with coach class tickets to
Penzance. J

37. On August 9, 2023, Plaintiff received an automated response from Defendant {(using a
no-reply émail address) with case refarence 254039032 stating: “We are currently
experiencing exceptionally high volumes, so you might have to woit a while for o
response, however, we will aim to get back to you as soon as possible”. A copy of that
email, which matches word for word except for the case reference number, the
response received to the June 26, 2023, complaint and is attached to this Plaint as
Exhibit10F,

38. On August 21, 2023, Plaintiff was searching the internet to see if there were any others
experiencing the same exceptionally poor customer service and difficulty getting a
refund from Defendant when Plaintiff came across the Consent Order issued on June 1,
2023, which caused Plaintiff to view Defendant’s previous emails from a whole new
perspective.

39. On August 27, 2023, Defendant sent an email (using a no-reply email address) for

' Plaintiff’s case reference 25172123 with subject “Your Response from BA Customer
Relations”, Plaintiff previously stated that the August 7, 2023, response was
astonlshing, but the latest update defies logic. Along with the usual trope about
booking tickets through travel agents, Defendant states, “Since you couldn’t board your
flight, you were marked as a ‘'No Show”, A copy of that email, once again signed by
pseudonym Sahil Sayyed on behalf of British Airways Customer Relations, is attached to this
Plaint as Exhibit10G,
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40. On September 6, 2023, after preparing this Plalint using the guldance found In the
SMALL CLAIMS HANDBOOCK produced by the Office of the Complaints Commissioner,
Plaintiff followed thelr recommendation and attempted to notify Defendant with a
“Letter before action” by emaill.

41. On September 7, 2023, Defendant responded once again saying “When you book a flight
with us and fail to truvel on it for any reasons, vou wifl be marked os a no show on that flight.”
This was followed with “To stay consistent with our policy, we're still unable to offer you o
refund.” A copy of that emall Is attached to this Plaint as Exhibit10H.

42. Plaintiff can categorically state that he indeed boarded the flight on lune 10, 2028, after
being forced to pay for his tickets a third time. Plaintiff cannot understand why Sahil
Sayyed, who must be Defendant’s computer-generated pseudonym rather than just
some functiohally Miterate human being, could conclude that Plaintiff was a “No Show”
on lune 10, 2023.

43. Plaintiff Is of the opinlon that Defendant’s “automated option to process ron-complex
refunds”, as mentioned In Defendant’s respohse to the Consent Order of June 1, 2023,
must be a verslon of ChatGPT gone crazy, which for lack of a better word Plaintiff will
assign the moniker “ChatBA”, It appears as if ChatBA is programmed to refuse all
requests for refunds and will simply parse the text of the complaint in search of
keywords it will then sptt out the best matched response to go with the rejection email.

44, In short, Plaintiff contands that ChatBA is a computer program that systematically
delays and then rejects all request for “non-complex” refunds, perhaps with the
knewledge that many customers will find their claims no longer worth the time and
effort necessary to pursue them, and by any acceptable standards must be canmdered
ah unfair and deceptive practice. h

45. While ChatBA may at first appear short on intelligence for an Artificial ntelligence App,
this may be a deliberate attempt to make it appear as some stressed individual who is
working feverishly to assist with the refund. Some of the anomalies Plaintiff has noticad
thus far include;

2. Defendant’s email of July 28, 2023, stating “we know you've been wditing for o
response for 28 days” only counted the days in July and forgot to add the days
from June to the tatal number of days Defendant made Plaintiff walt for a reply.

b. A bit of overreliance on finding key words such as travel agent and quickly
throwing aut the “I've checked our records and can see that, you've booked vour
tickets through o travel agent” excuse when the complaint wasn’t material to a travel
agerit’s involvement,

¢. Thisis a big one. “Since you couldn't board your flight, you were marked as o 'No
Show'” A customer standing at your ticket counter arguing with the agent about belng
forced to purchase a new ticket can naver be clagsified as a No Show!

46. Plaintiff recognizes that ChatBA, in conjunction with afways using “No Reply” email addresses in
correspondence to prevent dialogue, has been wildly successful for Defehdant zs they have
been holding on to Plaintif’s maney since March 1, 2023, and Plaintiff has now resigned
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himself to the fact that nothing short of a court order is going to make Defendant return the
maney,

47. Plaintiff contends that Defendant continues to engage In the unfair and deceptive
practices outlined in the U.S. Department of Transportation’s (Department or DOT)
Office of Aviation Consumer Protaction Consent Order dated June 1, 2023, and the
paragraphs that follow wilt offer ample evidence that wauld lead ahy non-conflicted
person to draw the same conclusion.

48. While those practices may not be illegal in the Cayman Islands, as Plaintiff suspects we
have ho laws specific to consumer aviation protection, that does not change the fact
thet Defendant has been unfair and deceptive in dealings with Plaintiff,

49. Defendart’s Annual Report and Accounts for the Year ended 31 December 2022, a
public document, on page-3 states “We have invested heavily in our contact centres and
recrulted new colleagues in this area, where we continue to roll out improvements to
enhance the customer expetience. This Includes phasing in a new, modern phone
system and o brand-new customer platform which equips our colleagues with the
ability to see all the information about each customer across multiple contact
chonnels in one central place.”

50. Dafendant indeed has a modern phone system with quick response, but as previously
intimated in paragraph 12 of this Plaint, any option not associated with ganerating
revenue for the Defendant usually gets the old “due to heavy call volumes we are
unable to process your coll” and then immediately disconnects, instead of the
excessive wait times in a queue from the old system mentioned in the Consant Order.
Plaintiff states that this “heavy call volumes” response was experienced from March
through September on every call made to 1-800-AIRWAYS whenever option 3 was
selected.

51. Plaintiff contends that it is not possible for Defendant to have “heavy call valumes” on
their phone system for more thah six months, as by definition whatever the call volume
might be, it must at some polnt in time become the norm. Defendant provides limited
resources for handling any calls to 1-800-AIRWAYS not expected to generate revenue
for Defendant, and cleverly does this by automatically directing those calls to a different
queue, This is glaringly obvious because the “heavy call volumes” message never oceurs
with options 1 or 2, It’s the sort of “if you're buying, 'm ready” but “f you want your
money hack, I'm busy” attention one would expect from a scoundrel.

52, Plaint!ff also contends that it Is not possible for Defendant to have “exceptionally high
volumes” on their customer online portal for a similar period without these exceptions
hecoming the narm. The chain of one-way emalls from Defendant to Plaintiff, using a
no-reply address, beginning June 26, 2023, and ending August 7, 2023, which Plaintiff
labels as Acknowledge, Delay, Delay, Delay, Deny, is a fine example of how Defendant
takes their customers’ good faith for as long as their patience might allow before issuing
a crushing denlal of a refund request without any human intervention whatsoever,
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53. Given what Defendant conslidered to be the final response on August 7, 2023, Plaintiff
has no doubt that the entire series of responses were generated by Defendant’s
“automated option to process non-complex refunds” and could have been sent to Plaintiff

_Within a matter of hours of the camplaint being filed, However, this wolld have ruined the
image conjured up by Defendant’s “Our Customer Relations team are really busy at the
mament, which means it’s taking longer than we'd like to get back to you with a full
response. Please rest aossured we'll be in touch as soon as possible”,

54. Plaintiff further contends that the “brand-new customer platform which equips our
colleagues with the ability to see all the information about euch customer across
multiple contact channels in one central place” must have suffered a glitch on June 10,
2023, since neither reservation WYGPY8 with electronic ticket numbars 1252154792500
and 1252154792508, nor reservation WXUM2H with electronlc ticket numbers
1252154792503 and 1252154792502 was visible to the agent at the dask that day.

55, The U.5. Department of Transportation’s (Department or DOT) Office of Aviation
Consumer Protection Consent Order dated lune 1, 2023, names as an Unfair Practice,
“an airline’s practice of not having a readily accessible way for consumers to request
refunds” and “retaining passengers’ funds for lengthy periods of time and failing to
provide readily accessible methods for consumers to request refunds ™.

56. Plaintiff reiterates that Defendant’s brand-new customer platform is a tool that allows
Defendant to fully automate and continue the unfair and deceptive practice of delaying
and denying customer requests for refunds, as shotwn in the atfached series of emails
from Defendant to Plaintiff. It is a fagade that allows Defendant to unnecessarily delay
responding for long periods of time, and then simply end the process by denying the
cugtomer a refund without even a cursory human review of the claim.

57. Any customer requesting a refund through Defendant’s online portal might initially be
led to believe that Defendant is truly concerned about them if they only judge by the
prose in Defendant’s one-way communications. Plaintiff has received responses with
“sorry” five times, “really sorry”, and “very sorry” in apologies on the length of time it
is taking them to respond, and for good measire even a “this isn’t the service you
should expect” hefore going on to summarily reject all claims.

58. Defendant’s responses to Plaintiff’'s multiple requests for a refund, or more accurately
the return of money that is rightfully his and Defendant never should bave hean taken
from his credit card, isn't the service anyone should expect, and hence the reason for
this Plaint.

AND the Plaintiff claims:

1. The sum of $2979.64 being: :
a. Refund of May credit card Finance Charge of US$48.07 x .84 = C1540.38
b. Refund of Alrline Tickets purchased June 10, 2023, USS2946.56 x .84 =
C1§2475.11
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c. Refund of Sleeper Train Tickets no longer valid US$285.48 x .84 = C1$239.80

d. Refund of Royal Cambridge Hotel for four hours rest PNDS210.00 = C1$224.35
(paid for with Plaintiffs CNB Cl dollar debit card).

2. Damages of $20,000.00, being the maximum amount allowable in this Honorable Court,
as a deterrent for tortious acts committed against Plaintiff, to wit:

a. Chargihg Plaintiff U$$2300.06 twice for the same tickets on March 1, 2023, and
never responding to Plaintiff's request to reverse the charge causing Plaintiff to
have to pay US548.07 in finance charges and have the credit limit on Plalntiff's
credit card reduced by US$2300.06 for three months.

b, Charging Plaintiff, a third time, US52946.56 for tickets previously purchased, once
again reducing Plaintiff’s credit card limit by USS US$2946.56 the day Plaintiff left
for vacation and potentially denying Plaintiff and his wife one-off opportunities
and experiences that can never be recreated.

c. Steadfastly refusing to refund the US$2946.56 that rightfully belongs to Plaintiff
despite the many impassioned pleas made to Defendant since June 26, 2023,

3. Costs to be assessed.

AR
Plaintiff's Signature

Abodden@ern dol
SS- AN

Plaintiff’s address for service

P.O. B_ox 1521GTKY1-1110
43 Stingray Drive, South Sound
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IN THE SUMMARY COURT AT GEORGE TOWN

CAUSE NO. §C QF 20
BETWEEN: '
John Patrick Bocden Plaintiff
AND:
British Airways PLC. Pefendant

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SERVICE

State Defendant’s name and address ~
Owen Roberts International Airport
Grand Cayman
Cayman [slands

State whether the Defendant intends to contest the action.

DY&S Dr\io
if you do not intend to contest the action, do you want time in which to pay the claim?
Ej‘v_’es E:INO

if you do intend fo contest the action, in whole orin part, you must set out full particulars of
your defence averfeaf.

Service of the Plaint is acknowledged accordingly,

Defenda rt’s Signature

DATED this day of 20

$2023-0212 Page 13 of 57
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PARTICULARS OF DEFENCE

(Here set out in numbered paragraphs are the grounds upon which the Defendant says that he
is not fiable to the Plaintiff, or is not lfable for the fult amount claimed)

PARTICULARS OF COUNTERCLAIM

AND the Defendant claims:.

Defendant’s Signature

REMINDER: This form must he taken or sentto the Court Office, PO Box 495, Grand Cayman
KY1-1106 Cayman Istands within 14 days of receipt otherwise a default Judgment may be
-entered against you.

$52023-0212 Page 14 of 57 : 2023-09-12
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Receipt
Expedia itinerary: 72502279220631
Purchase date: Mar 1, 2023

Booking details

Roundtrip flight

George Town (GCM) to London (LHR)
British Afrways 0252

Economy / Coach (0)

London (LHR) to George Town (GCM)
British Airways 0253

Economy / Coach (O)

Depart; Jun 10, 2023,

Return; Jun 24,2023

Traveler 1 Adult

JOHN PATRICK BODDEN

Ticket Number: 1252154792509

Traveler 2r Adult
NANCY LEE BODDEN
Ticket Number: 1252154752508

Payment details

Flight price

Traveler 1: Adult $508.00
Taxes and fees $641.18
Traveler 2: Adult $509.00
Taxes and fees $641.18
Other

Trip Protection Plus - $281.56
Total $2,581.92
Paid $2,581.92

[MasterCard 4098}
S2023-0212 Page 15 of 57 2023-09-12
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From: British Airways Customer Services <BA,CustSvcs@email.ba.com>
Sent: Monday, March 6, 2023 811 PM
To: JBODDEN@CANDW.KY
Ce: NDC_AGENCY®GROUPS.EXPEDIAGROUP.COM
Subject: Confirmation of changes to Booking Reference: WYGPY8

BRITISH AIRWAYS

Dear Customer, ' Booking reference; WYGPYS8

Contact email address: JBODDEN@CANDW.KY

This is confirmation of changes made to your British Airways booking.

Summary of changes

Provision of Advance Passenger Information for JOHM PATRICK BODDEN.

JOHN PATRICK BODDEN updated the contact mobile/celt phone numbars for this
booking.

Frovision of Advance Passenger Information for NANCY LEEF BODDEN.

JOHN PATRICK BODDEN updated the cortact mobilelcell phone nurnbers for this
haoking.

The changes were requested by passenger JOUN PATRICK BODDEN

. 1
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From: British Airways UK <webformuk@email.ba.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 1211 PM
To: Jbodden@candw.ky _
Subject: My booking WYGPY8 seéms to have been canceled after MasterCard reversed the...

[Incident: 230524-003286]

Dear)ohn Patr:ck |
Thank you fcsr wrltmg to us about your %mokmg and ’che change you want to make

If your query is regarding a change to your booking related to COVID-19 travel
restrictions and flight cancellations/alterations, please see this ba.com section for
helpful information:

http://www ba.com/confidence

The information below only applies to bookings made directly with us, If you
booked with a travel agency, online travel website {except Skyscanner or Kayak) or
another airline please contact them directly for assistance.

Booking changes don't work well in an email conversation, as vital flight seat
availahility can be lost while we wait for each other to reply, plus we sometimes
need to give you quite detailed information which isn't suited to time-lapsed
email replies. Additionally, there are payment protection regulations that mean we
can't ask for your card details in an email, if we need to take any extra money
from you

If you're wanting to ¢ancel anything from within your booking, again there’s
detailed information you'll need from us which isn't suited to an email
conversation.

Our telephone numbers during the COVID-19 travel pahdemic are here;

ttps//wwwbritishairways.com/information/incident/coronavirus/latest=

infermati@n#needt‘econtac;tus

If you can't make the change you need to on ba.com, or have questions about the
ticket you purchased that isn't available when you view your booking using

1
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i

. Manage My Booking (at: hitp://www.ba.com/mmb ), our Customer Support team

can nelp you, Currently it's not possible to change your origin or destination
airports on ba.com, reduce the number of people travelling (dividing your
booking and cancelling some people off it), or alter a return ticket so that it's now

| just one-way.

Some changes or cancellations made over the telephone will incur an
administration charge - our agents will tell you this before taking the action.
Our telephone numbers during the COVID-19 travel pandemic are here:

hitps://www, britishairways.com/information/incident/coronavirus/latest-
Information#needtocontacius

Finally, please be aware that if you do ring through to us, our agents will need to
complete some security validations to ensure they're protecting your
data/booking, so could you please have the full details of your flights/booking
available plus your passport details to hand (as this information could form part of
the detalls required by them).

Please feel free to let us know if you have any more questions.
Kind regards.
British Airways

X 0w s e e e e

e T e 04 UL 100 Pt BRER 4

British Airways recommends that all our customers remain aware of their
government's travel advice for the destination they are travelling to. For UK
nationals this can be accessed from the Foreign and Commonwealth Office "travel
aware’ website:

hitps://travelaware campaigrn.gov.uk/

Customers of other nationalities should seek advice from their own government.
The information in this Internet email is confidential and may be legally privileged.
It is intended solely for the addressee. Access by any other person to this Internet
email is not authorised.

If you are not the intended recipient, please delete thls Internet email and inform
the sender as scon as possible.. Any disclosure of this Internet email or of the
parties to it, any copying, distribution or any action taken or omitted to be taken
in reliance on it is prohibited, and maybe unlawful.

You can read British Airways' Privacy Policy here:
https,//www britishalrways.com/information/legal/privacy-policy

This email message has been swept by McAfee virus protection for the presence
of computer viruses however we cannot guarantee that it is virus-free and you

2
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' should scan this mail and, before opening them or saving them, any attachments
for viruses.

This email was sent to you by British Airways Ple: http.//www.ba.com/travel/about-

hritish-airways/

_ cance frer MasterCard reversed the
doubfe charge BA made tc:l my credf’c Card on Mar 2 2023

ibodden@candw.ky

P.O. Box 1521GT KY1-1110

Booking made via Expedia - Expedia itinerary: 7250227922063 1

John Bodden & Nancy Bodden return tickets to London WYGPY8

Passport # 542923944 expires 05 May 2027

Credit Card #*%* ¥&&x diix 4008 sxnires 01/24

3
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jbouden@candwiey
From: British Alrways Customer Services <BA CustSves@emailba.coms
Sent: Fricay, May 26, 2023 5:09 PM
To: JBODDEN@CANDW.KY
Ce: : NDC_AGENCY@GROUPS.EXPEDIAGROUP.COM
Suhject: Confirmation of changes to Booking Reference: WXUM2H

BRITISH AIRWAYS

Dear Customer, | Booking reference: WXUM2H

Contact email addrass: JBODDEN@CANDW.KY
Thie s confirraalion of changes made 1 your British Airdrays bobidng.

Summary of changes

Frovision of Advance Passenger Information for NANCY LEE BODDEN,

The changes were requested by passenger JOHN PATRICK BODDEN

Manage my booking

To review your booking, please glick on the link below;

We look forward to welcoming you on board
British Airways Customer Services

1
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From: British Airways Customer Services <BA.CustSves@email ba.com>
Sent: Friday, Jung'9, 2023.5:05 PM

To: Jbodden@candw.ky

Subject: Your Departure WXUM2H: 10 Jun 2023 18,05

BRITISH AIRWAYS

It's time to fly

Dear Customer, Booking reference: WXUMZH

W ook forward 10 weldbiming you tn board flight BADEEZ from Grand Cayman oh 10 Jung
2028 B 18:05

Are you ready fo fly?

Online check-in opens 24 hours before your flight
departs

+ The countdown clogk in 'Manage My Booking' will tell you
when you can check in.

a  Once check-in opens, use ba,com or the BA mobile app to
choose your seatand print or download your boarding pass.

= You car also save, email or print your bearding pass again
on ba. com,

1
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52023-0212

@5 BUTTERFIELD

LA

JOHN P BODDER

CAYMAN ISLANDS

For no-wait payment; pleasa lncluda credit card numbér

Exhibit3A.

Pagg 22 oL &7 PAST DUE BAYMENT U g 1 £
BALANCE AMOUNT DUE DATE PAYMENT DUE
04/04/23
- PLEASE WRITE AMOUNT CF
ACCOUNT NUMBZR PATMENT ERCLOSED

Ali payments will be processed through your savings or chequing agcount.

Kecounk number to'be sed for payments processing

HEER

Agcount name!

L1 1 1]

LT

RN

Cradits Subject to Bank Verification and Proof
Calf Centra Telephone Mot {345) 815 7527

To Reporta Lost or-Stalen Card alter Business Hours.
Pleasa Call Telophone Mo {345) 815 7527

mestercard,

butterfield miles platinum

BUTTERFIELD BANX {CAYMAN] LIMITED
Butkerfield Place, 17 Albart Panton Street
PO, Box 705, Grand Cayman KY1 1107, Cayman jslands®

. TREDIT CREDIT T PAYWEN, MINIVUM
ACCOUNT NUMBER, LRAIT AVAILABLE SRS | ¢ onNG pATE U DATE PAVMENT DUE
28 103710723 | 04/04/23
DATE OF e - A .
T a e REFERENCE NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF TRANSACTION AMOUNT
02712
02/12
02/24
03/01.-
03702 | | |
03/02103/0205272441YSFE6ID0OB [BRITISH 1252154792508 800-~-2479297 NY 1,150.18
23/06/24 LEE NANCY BGDDEN |
1. BAD LONDON LONDON
_ 2 BA O LONDON GRAND -CAYMAN , |
03/02103/02 05?72441YSFG6JDOJ BRITISH 1252154792509 800~2479297 NY 1,156G.18
23/06/24 PATRICK JOHN BODDEN -
1°BA O LONDON LONDON
2 BA O LONDON GRAND CAYMAN B
03/02[03/0205272441YSFGEIDLL [BRITISH I 103 800-2478297 NY 1,150,118
23/06/24 PATRICK JOHN BODDEN
1 BAQ LONDON LONDON
| |2 mro LONDON GRAND CAYMAN | |
03/02|03/02|05272441YSPEEID10 BRITISH 02 800-2479297 NY 1,150,18
PREVIOUS BALANGE PAYMENTS CREDITS - g@ﬂﬁﬁ.’;ﬁf{fﬁeﬁs CASH ADVANCES T-méi‘ ilﬁnamcs NEW BALANCE
AB AMOUNT WITH A MINUS SIGH (- 15 A CREDIT BALANCE UNLESS CTHERWISE INGICATED:
AVERAGE DALY CORRESPONDING CORRESPONDING
DALY PERIODIC FINANCE ANNUAL
BALANCE RATE CHARGES PERCENTAGE RATE
PURCHASES 0.00 % 000 19.50%
CASH ADVANCES 0.00 % ' 0.00 19.50%

Butterfiald Bank (Cayman) Umited is licensed ta conduct banking ahd Investignt biusiness by the Caymzn Islarids Monetary Authirity, Address! Butierfield Rlace, 12 Albert Panton Sm:et

52023-6212

Page 22 of 57
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52023-0212 Page 23 of 57
% BUTTERFIELD ?  butterfield miles platinum
_ rogtareonl.
e v P s v o
28 103/10/23 04/04/23
THANS, = pOST REFERENCE NUMBER ) BESCRIPTION OF TRANSAGTION AMOUNT
23/06/24 LEE NANCY BODDEN
1 BAO LONDON LONDON
2 BA O LONDCON GRAND CAYMAN
03/02103/02|05272441YSFGEEIDIW [BRITISH 1252154857013 BO0-2479297 MY 162.00
23/06/12 LEE NANCY BODDEN
1 BAV LONDON FLORENCE
03/02(03/02|05272441Y8FE6INL4 [BRITISH 1252154857014 B0C~2479297 Ny 162.00
23/06/12 P JOHN BODDEN
1 BA YV LOWNDON FLORENCE
03/03|03/03|05272441288GIETN [BRITISH 1252154857427 BO0-2479297 NY 119,20
23706720 F JOHN BODDEN
1 BAV BOLOGNA LONDON
03703103/03 (0527244178PG9R97Y [BRITISH 1252154857426 B800~2479297 NY 119.20
23/086/20 LEE NANCY BODDEN
1L BAY BOLOGNA LONDON
03/05%
03/07
520230212 Page 23 of 57 PAGE 24




Exhibit3B

$2023-0212 Pageg 24 oty PAST DUE PAYMENT | 20 Airiiehr ] 2
. BALANCE AMOUNT DUE DATE PAYMENT UUE
@5 BUTTERFIELD 06/04/23
. oo PLEASE WRITE AMOUNT OF
ACCOUNT NUMBER PAYMENT ENGLOSED
$
01442 All payments will be processed through your savings or cheyulng sccount.

JOHN P BODDEN

Account number to be used for paymants processing ¢

CAYMAN ISLANDS } I |

Actount namer

For no-wait payment, please include cradit card number

N N O Y O O A B

Credits Subjact to. Bank Varlfication and Broof

butterfield miles platinum

N “BUTTERFIELD BANK (CAYMAN] LIMITED
To Raporta Lost or Stalen Card after Bushess Hour - :
call Centra Teleghona No: (345) §15 7577 p?aaigglrﬁlir?;n;me; (;:5;815; ‘z;;;_ess e Eg"‘eﬁ;f:;if 'Z?i:nlj g:;:npigg°;‘1§;“_‘ézyman s
, FREDIT CREDIT DAL BILLING CYCLE PAVMENT ' TN AU
ACCOUNT NUMBER LINLT AVAILABLE RS | Cloaweome | pueowt DAYMIENT DIE
30 |05/10/23 | 06/04/23
BATE OF I ' o _ .
Y REFERENGE NUMBER DESCRIPTION DFFRANSACTION AMOUNT
04/21
04/21 R
04723 1 04/21 |55504433F2RKA278M W, GWR, . COM _ 07889651585 GH 231,47
|  |2304 180,00 826 1.285944444 o
04/21104/21155504433F59VIDOK3 AW . BEATHROWEXPRESS . CO 07730147935 GH 493,87
et (3304 73,00 826 1.285890410

Gd7zal0argn

2304 222,00 826 1.285%45945
05/10|05/L0 [*FENANC PURCHASES §48.07 CASH ADVANCE  £0.00 180T
PREVICUS BALANCE PAYMENTS CREDITS A s g | cAsH ADVANCES TOT@;.;&%”& MEW BALANCE

AN AMOUNT WITH A MINUS SIGN{-{ 15 A CREDIT BALANCE UNLESS DTHERWISE INDICATED.

AVERAGE BAILY CORRESPONDING CORRESPONDING
DALY PERIODIC FINANCE ANMUAL
BALANCE RATE CHARGFS PERCENTAGE RATE
PURCHASES % 48,07 19,50%
CASH ADVANCES 0.00 % 0,00 18.50%

Buttarfield Bank {Cayman] Limita @ is lcensed to conduet ban klﬁg and invastment business by the Cayman fslinds Monetary Authority, Address: Battatfield Place, 12 Albert Panton Strast

$2023-0212 Page 24 of 57 o e R B
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@5 BUTTERFIELD

95712

JOHN P BODDEN
CAYMAN ISLANDS

For no-wait payment, please include credit card numnber

Exhibit3C

Pagé 25 ohbid

PAST DUE PAYMENT Signidi-12
BALANCE AMOUNT BUE DATE PAYMENT DUE
07/05/23
ACCOUNT NUMBER PLEASEWRITE AMOUNT OF

PAYMENT ENCLOSED

$

All payments wifl be processed through your savings or chequing account.

-Account numbsr to be used for payments processing :

Agcount name:

I .

.

Credits Subject to Bank Verllication and Proof
Call Cantre Telephone Moi (345) 815 7527

To Raport a Lost or Stolen Card after _Busfness Hours
Plaase Call Telaphone Mot (245) 81% 7527

arnericenAinines

Ahdvantage %, Platinum

BUTTERFIELD BANK (CAYMAN} LiMlIT_E_D
Butterfield Plaga, 12 Alberl Panton §treet
RO, Box 708, Srand Cayman Kyl 1307, Cayman (slands

. CREDIT CREDIT DAYS 1N BILLING CYCLE PAYMENT MM VLIV
s 3 " 3 :
ACCOUNT NUMBER LRI AVAILABLE e | cosing pate DUE DATE PAYMENT DUE
31 |06/1G/23 07/05/23
Ear REFERENCE NUMBER DESCRIPTIO - AMOUNT
o e ENCE N ESCRIPTION OF TRANSACTION i

85432294?01765“\’21

PAYMENT - 'I'HANK YU

" PURCHASES: . TOTAL FINAMCE e
PREVIOUS BALANCE PAYMENTS CREDITS ANID OHHER CHARGES CASH ADVANCES CHAnGE NEW BALANGE
1 AN AMGUNT WITH A MINUS SIEN {115 A CREDIT BALANCE UNLESS OTHERWISE IIDICATED,
AVERAGE DALY CORRESPONDING CORRESPONDING
DAILY PERIODIC FINANCE AMHUAL

BALANCE RATE CHARGES PERCENTAGE RATE
PURCHASES 0.00 % 0.00 19,50%
CASH ADVANCES 0.00 % 0.00 19.50%

Butterfiold Bank ([Coyman) Limited is licensed to conduet banking and investmaent businass by the Cayman lslands Monetary Authorlty. Addresst Buiterfield Placa, 12 Albast Pstiten Sireet

Page 25 of 57
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@5 BUTTERFIELD

JOHN P BODDEN

CAYMAN ISLANDS

81430

for no-wall payment, please tncluda credit card number

Exhibit3D

Pagd 2676857 PAST DUE PAYMENT LU dalete T2
BALANCE AMOUNT DUE DATE PAYMENT DUE
08/04/23
- PLEASE WRITE AMOUNT OF
ACCOUNT NUMBER PAYMENT ENCLOSED

Al payments will be processed through your savings or chagquing account.

Accotmnt niumber to be used forpayments processing :

Aeccountname:

L1 1 ]

L]

NN

mastercard,

Gradits Subjest to Bank Verification and Proof
Call Centra Telephone No: {345) 815 7527

To Reporta Lost or Stelen Card sfter Business Hours
Please Calt Telephone No: (345) 818 7527

butterfield miles platinum

BUTTERFIELD BANK {CAYMAN] LIMITED
Butterfield Place, 32 Albert Panton Straet
PO, Box 705, Grand Caymian KY1 1107, Cayman Islands

: CREDIT CREDIT DAYS 1N BILLING CYCLE PAYMENT MINIMUM
ACCOUNT NUMBER LIMIT AVAILABLE WA | ciosivg nare DUE DATE PAYMENT DUE
30 107/710/23 08/04/23
PR REFERENGE NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF ’
= s N4 M BE ESCRIPTION OF TRANSACTION AMOUNT
06/10/23 BODDEN/NANCY LEE
1_. BA L GRAND CAYMAN LOMDON
o 2 BA S LONDON GRAND CAYMAN
06711
06423
06/27
PURCHASES TOTAL BINANGE
PREVIOUS BALANGE PAYMENTS CREDITS AND OTHER CHARGES CASH ADVANCES CHARBE NEW BALANCE
AN AMOUNT WITH.A MINUS SIGN (-] 15 & CREDIT BALANCE UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED,
AVERAGE DALY CORRESPONDING CORRESPONDING
DALY PERIODIC FINANCE ANNUAL
BALANCE RATE CHARG ES PERCENTAGE RATE
PURCHASES 0.00 % .00 19.50%
CASH ADYANCES 0.00 % 0.00 19.50%
Butterfield Sank {Cayman] Limited Is licensed fo conduet banking and investment businass by the Cayman Isiands Monetary Authority. Address: Battetfield Place, 12 Albert Panton Streat
RO, Box 709, Grand Cayman yman b ancis
$2023-0212 o M
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Mar 9, 2023

Virtual Agent
Hl John I'm yeur Vlrtuai Agent @

Piease keep thls chat open Ifyou Ieav& this pacre or make other sciectmns you cc}uld Iose yow:‘
piacemlm& e : : T R Sy
5:34 PM -

Sotiin (Agent)

Hi, this is Sonim ! T'will just take a. mmute to read thmugh the. cenversatmn and get cauaht ap.
Than I'IE he Vabie-tofhelp you sharﬂy Thank you! SUE o

52023-6212 Page 27 of 57 2023-09-12
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Sonim (Agent)
Is thlS the bookmg ? Round trlp fo LHR
: Tor _

Wﬂ;h an}f Gther baokm g/Itmerary-"or-any other quesiion Yﬁg&l‘dlﬂ" the baoked

Thahk i fi ce)n&'actmg us mday Have a geod day

VH lual Agcnt
QK* Do you have a mmu’ca tc: angwer 3 qumk questtens? We'll use your feédback 0 i unprove the
experience. . . : : . :

5:51PM

52023-0212 Page 28 of 57 2023-09-12
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Mar 14, 2023

Virtual Agent.

Hi John, I'm your Virtual Age:nt @

10 54 AM - _

r m here 24/7 to heip WIth ymn travcl plans Te c:ontmue to 1mp1ove your expeuencez this
If at any pmnt I’m not able 10 assxst you i cormect you to an

V,lrtual Ag&nt
Heip is.on the way' An agent wﬂ} sav haﬂo shortly

02AM 0 o - L f .
Please kcap thls chat opcn If you 1@&% thzs page or make c:ther selecnons yfm cmﬂd k)se your :
place inline. - : : - - S :
11:02 AM-

52023-0212 Page 29 of 57 2023-09-12
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Christian (Acrent)
Hi, This is Chrlstlan How can 1help yeu?
11 03 AM : T

Chrlsilan {Agent)

520230212 Page 30 of 57 2023-09-12
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You're welcome ry to ccntact your bank ﬁrst beferc the alrlme
TIPS AM - ' :
Is thare anythmg eise i czm assmt yoa with?

F 3 4 iy
Christian {Agent)
Thank “you: for choosmcr chat have a great one
1L:17AM: SRR
Vu’tuai Agent

ave a mmutc to answer 3 quxck questlons‘? Wa‘]l use your f‘eedback to 1mprove thc

Hi John 'm your Vlrtual Agent @
11519 AM: - i : :
I'nthere 24/7 to heip wi '.}jI_Qur Erave! pians To contmue to Impmve ymu' expenence thls L
cemfersatzon may be recorded. If at ¢ any point T’ not: able to assmt yau TH] connect yau to an B
agent: who can. What would y{)u hke to do‘? . ; _

11:19 AM: : ~ : '

T can't help you wrth thts yet, so iet‘s Get someone who' can .

119 AM - - s

52023-0212 _ Page 31 of 57 2023-09-12
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52023-0212 Page 32 of 57 2023-09-12
jbodden@candw.ky
From: British Alrways UK <webformuk@email ba.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 14, 2023 3:16. PM
To: jbodden@candw.ky
Subject: British Airways Customer Relations query (p-t) [Incident; 230314-003755]

ATISHAIRWAYS

Thank you for contacting British Airways Customer Relations. We'll reply to your
query as soon as possible.

Please read the following information:

The latest on the COVID-19 situation - including country entry regulations and
ticket options - is available on ba.com using the link below, including your ticket
options - it's always up-to-date:

hitps.//www ba.com/coronavirus

If you need urgent help from British Airways, please use the following link to our
telephone details around the world:
http:/fwww.ba.com/contact

Kind regards
British AErwa_ys_

Contact Information

Name - John Patrick Bodden

Home Address
43 Stingray Drive

South Sotind

1
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87_2023:-0212 ) ) Page 33 of 57
: Off Wallcer's Road

Grand Cayman
KY11110

Cayman Islands

Issue Reported

Issue 1

Type of Issue - Bookings and reservations: Refunds - Apply for a refund - All
other refund reasons

Analysis Code - 4 B&R RR
Passenger(s) Affected

Name - John Patrick Bodden

~ Email - ibodden@candw.ky

Name ~ Nancy Lee Bodden
Email - nanbodden@hotmail.com

Travel Details

Booking Reference - WYGPY8
Marketing Flight Number - BAD252
Operating Flight Number - BA0252
Scheduled Departure Date - 10 Jun 2023
Departing - Grand Cayman (GCM) |

Arriving - Heathrow (LHR)

Y4
$2023-6212 Page 33 of 57

2023-09-12



$2023-0212 Page 34 of 57 2023-09-12

!

Airline ~ British Airways

Portal Text

Case Type - Portal Text

Case Text - On March 2, 2023 you charged my credit card twice for.thesame
~ booking made through Expedia; 1252154792508 and 1252154792509 are on my
'~ Expedia account, but | have just received my Credit Card bill and you have
- charged for the same flights under 1252154792503 and 1252154792502, There
are a total of four separate charges of $1150.18 for John and Nancy Bodden
return flights.

3
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From; British Alrways UK <webformuk@ermail.ha.com>

Sent: Wednesday, March 15, 2023 10:32 PM

To: Jhodden@candw.ky

Subject: British' Airways Customer Relations query (p-1) [Incident; 230314-003755]

Response By Email (Daksha
Dear John

- Thank you for having written to us about your booking query.
I'm sorry to disappoint you but we're unable to assist you through this email channel.
{ request you to please contact your nearest British Aitways office;

Telephone numbers, addresses and opening times for our offices can be found on ba.com here:

hitp:

www.britishairways.com/contact
| hope they resolve this-swiftly for you.
Please feel free to let us know if you have any more questions.

Kind regards

 Dakshata

British Airways

If you have 5-10 minutes spare, we would love to hear your experience having emailed British Airways
for assistance. This link takes you to a survey that we'd appreciate you completing:

https://askba-

fagemail.custhelp.com/ci/documents/detail/5/196/12/6ad4f60726863853110f3ad 150e61836792b370h

B el

British Airways recommends that all our customers remain aware of their government's travel advice

. L
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Order 2023-6-3

F TRA
g\é’io o
=
AL 7
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

WASHINGTON, D.C.

Issued by the Depariment of Transportation
on the 1% day of June, 2023

British Airways Ple Docket QOST-2023-0001

Violations of 49 U.8,C. § 41712 and

14 CFR Part 259 Served June 1, 2023
CONSENT ORDER

The U.S. Department of Transportation’s (Department or DOT) Office of Aviation Consuter
Profection has determined that British Airways Tailed to provide timely refinds to/passénigers for
flights to and from the United States that the carrier caneelled or significantly changed in
violation of 49 U.S,C. § 41712 (Section 41712) and 14 CFR Part 259. From March to November
2020, British Azrways website instructed consumers to contact the carrier via phone to “discuss
refund options,” including for flights the carrier canceled or significantly changed. However,
consumers were unable to get through fo customer service agents when calling the carrier for
several months dumg thls per 1od because British Airways | “failed to maintain adéquate

netiona (VICE T inés. There was also o way to submit 4 refund
mquest through the camez 'S websxte during this period. Also, from March to November 2020,
British Airways had misleading information on its website which led consumers to inadvertently
request travel vouchers instead of refunds. Since March 2020, the Department has received over
1,200 complaints alleging that British Alrways failed to provide timely refunds after cancelling
or significantly changing consumers’ flights to or from the United States. British A;rwa}/s has
recetved thousands more complamts and refund requests du‘eetly ﬁom CONSUMETS. ish

Bfmsh A1rways 0 cease and desist from future smliai‘ivmlatlons of 49 US.C. '§ 41712 and 14
CFR Part 259 and assesses the carrier $1,100,000 i1 ¢ivil penalme_s
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Applicable Law

Pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 41301, a foreign air cartier’ may provide foreign air transportation® only
if the foreign ajr carrier holds a permit from the Department authorizing the foreign air
transpottation or has a valid exemption from that section,® A foreign air-carrier that holds a
foreign air carrier permit from the Department is subiect to the requirements of 49 U.8.C,

§ 41712, which prohibits an air carrier, foreign air carrier, or a ticket agent from engaging in an
unfau and deceptwe practice in air transportanon o ’r,he sa!e of air ttansportatmn 4

In April and May 2020, in response to the high volume of air travel service complaints received,
many of which concetned refimds, the Department’s Office of Aviation Consumer Protection
(OACP) issued notices to help consumers understand their rights and emphasize to dirlines that
the unprecedented iimpact COVID-19 has had on air travel has.not changed the airlines’
obligation under Section 41712 to wfund ASSENZers for flights that airlines ca cel or

i gmf cantly change,

A3

I 49 U.5.C. § 40102(a)(21) defines a “foreign air carrier” as “a person, not a citizen of the United States,
undertaking by any means, directly or indirectly, to provide foreign air trangportation,”

7 49 U.S.C. § 40102(a)(5) defines “air transportation” as “foreign air transportation, interstate air tranaportation, or
the transportation of mail by aircraft.” 49U.8.C. § 40102(a)(23) defines “foreign air transportation” as “the
trangportation of passengers or propetty by aircraft as a common carrier for compénsation, or the transportation of
mail by alrerafl, between a place in the United States and a place outside the United States when any part of the
transportation is by aireraft.”

¥ The authority required by section 41301 s separate and distinct from the operations specifications and approvals
that such an entity must obtain from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) for operations to and from the
United States,

* The Department’s regulations impose obligations on airlines that cannot be avoided through contractual
provisions, See Spirit dirlines vs, DOT, 687 F.3d 403, 416 (D.C. Cir. 2012} (DOT may Tmplement rule that alclines
must charge their policies to permit a passengér {o cancel a reservation without penalty within 24 liours, baged on
DOT’s finding that existing practices were Unfair or deceptive).

% “Bnforcement Notice Regarding Refunds by Carriers Given the Unprecedented Impact of the Covid-19 Public
Health Emergency-on Ale Travel” (April 3, 2020), available at

httos/Fwww.transportation. gov/airconsumer/enforcement. notice refunds apr 3 2020; “Frequently Asked
Quesfions Regarding Airline Ticket Refunds Given the Unprecedented Impact of the Covid-19 Public Health

Emergency on Alr Travel” (May 12, 2020), available at
hitps:/www . transportation.covfairconsumet/FAQ réfunds may 12 2020,

Sid at 2 n7;
"Id.

2
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“Defining Unfair or Deceptive Practices,”® which codified both definitions.? That rulemaking,
among other things, also requires that the Department provide its reasoning for concluding that a
certain practice is unfair or deceptive to consumers when an aviation consumer protection
regulation does not apply to the practice at issue and the determination is based on the
Department’s general authority to prohibit unfair or deceptive practices under section 41712,

OACP sets forth below the reason'that an airline not having a viable way for consumers to
request refunds for flights it cancels or significantly changes, resulting in extreme delays in the
issuance of refunds, is an unfair practice. OACP also explains below that an airline misleading a.
consumer, so the consumer requests a travel voucher instead of a refund, is a deceptive practice.

Unfair Practice

Aaitl s for
ihghts it cancels or significantly changes Lesuitmg in delays n consumers obtaining required
refunds is “unfair” as it causes substantial harm to consumers, the harm is not reasonably
avoidable, and the harm is not outweighed by benefits to consumers or competition. First, the
pracuce unposes substantml harm to consumers because they paid money to the carrier for

Second, the harm is not reasonably avoidable. A consumer acting reasonably would believe that
he or she was antitled to a '1"efund under U.S. law if the c;;.rrier canccl]ed or significantly changed

e

Third, the harm is not cutweighed by countervailing benefits to consumers or competition. The
Department seeks to regulate practices that are injurious to consumers in their net effects.'! In
enforcing Section 41712, which is modeled on Section 5 of the Federal Trade Coinmission
(FTC) Act, the Department recognizes, like the FTC, that practices may be harmful to consumers
in some ways, but beneficial in others, For example, offsetting benefits may include Jower prices
ot a wider availability of products and services resulting from competition.'

% 85 Fed. Reg. 78707 (December 7, 2020),

¥ 14 CFR 399.79(b).

19 14 CFR 399.79(e)(2).

1T See hitpsy/www fro.gov/public-statements/1980/12/fte-policy-statement-unfaimess.
2 See Id

3
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Deceptive Practice

The practice of stating that a consumer has the option of obtaining a refund but then obfuscating
the necessary steps to obtain a refund or only offering consumers vouchers for a flight the carrier
canceled or significantly changed is “deceptive,” as that term is defined by regulation, A practice
is “deceptive” to consumers within the meaning of section 41712 if it is likely to mislead a
consumaer, ﬁcting reasonably under the circumstances, with respect to a material matter. A matter
is material if it is likely to have affected the consumer’s conduct or decision with 1espect to a
product or service.'> Express misrepresentations, 1mpl1ed representations, and omissions are all
potentially actionable.’* A fallura to provide services as promised (whether by contract or
otherwise) can also be deceptive. 'S

First, contradictory and false information on how to obtain refunds is likely to mislead a
consumer because a statement indicating that the consumier should follow a particular method to
obtain a refund would indicate to a consumer that they would receive a refund to the original
form of payment if they pursued that method. Such'a refund is materially different from a
voucher or other non-refund option because the consumer receives the entirety of their money
back, to be used as the consumer sees fit. Non-refund options typically require the consumer to
use the value of the product onty on specific types of future purchases (such as future flights on
the carrier’s schedule) A consumer seeking a refund and relying on express refund options
stated on a carrier’s website, would be misled if the carrier instead led them to a process only for
requesting and aceepting vouchers which could not be exchanged for a refund. B

Second, a consumer would be acting teasonably to conclude that the word “refund™ means what
it is commonly understood to mean: their money back-in cash or in the original form of payment.

Third, the misrepresentation is material beoa,use 1t is likely to have affected the consumer’s
conduci or decision

A HESIEd: When that option for a 1efund as explamed by the carrier, actually
leads a consumer to an option to accept a voucher, a cofisumer that would othérwise not accept a
voucher and would seek a refund might instead accept the lesser alternative because they thought
they were requesting a refimd. Further, when a carrier advertises an option for consumers to
request refunds that instead leads them to other lesser forms of compensation, this is material as
well because the carrier has hindered consumers from pursaing true options for refunds and
wasted their time. This practice also leads consumers into thinking that a voucher is indeed the
only remedy that they can receive from the carrier.

314 CPR 399.79(b)(2).
4 See 85 Ped. Reg, 78707, 78708 (Dec. 7, 2020).

1% Sge¢ DOT Order 2013-3-12 (airline acted deceptively when it stafed on its web site that certain conditions of
carriage, including EU-martdated compensation for cancelled flights, would apply to international travel to aud from
the U.S., but-then refused o abide by those conditions).

4
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DOT’s Customer Service Regulation

In addition to the general prohibition on unfair and deceptive practices, pursuant to

14 CFR 259.5, U.S. and foreign air carriers operating at least one aircraft having a designed
seating capacity of 30 or more seats must adopt a Customer Service Plan and adhere to the Plan’s
terms, Customer Service Plans represent a baseline, uniform, minimum level of service to which
all covered carriers operating flights to and from the United States must comply. The Customer
Service Plan must include certain commitments relating to the payment of refunds to passengers
when required by Section 41712. Section 259.5(b)(5) requires: “Where ticket refunds are due,
providing prompt refunds, as required by 14 CFR 374.3 and [Regulation Z, 12 CFR Part 1026]
for credit card purchases, and within 20 days after receiving a complete refund request for cash
and check purchases, including refunding fees charged to a passenger for optional services that
the passenger was unable to use due to an oversale situation or flight cancellation.” QACP’s
position is that refunds are “due” when failure to pxowcie them Would constitute an unfair or
deceptive practice under Section 41712, REEH] ‘
bﬁﬁa efuidsimnis

3 5 Pursuant to 14 CFR 374, 3(b), violations of Regulaﬂon Z
constitute viclations of 49 U.S.C. Subtitle VI,

Facts and Conclusions

British Airways, a foreign air carrier, holds a foreign air carrier permit to operate flights to and
from the United States pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 41301, British Atrways uses at least one aircraft
having a designed capacity of more than 30 passenger seats. One condition of British-Airways’
foreign air carvier permit is that British Alrways “comply with such other reasonable tefms,
conditions, and limitations required by the public interest as may be prescribed by the
Department, with all applicable orders or regulations of other U.S. agencies and courts, and with
all applicable laws of the United States,”'” Accordingly, British Airways is subject to the
requirements in 49 U.S.C. § 41712 and 14 CFR 259.5.

Smce March 1, 20?0 over 1, 200 consumers complmned to the Department that B

stgﬂlﬁcanﬂy changed. An mvestlgauon by QACP revealed that ﬁom M arch to November 2020,
certdin British Airways” webpages and notifications to consumers regarding cancelled and
delayed flights instructed consumers to contact the carrier via phone to “dlscuss refund optlons

Bmlsh Alfrways® customer service phone lmes e:xpeuenced significant issues, During that period,
British Airways had closed some of its call centers, including a major call center in India, while

16 Tn enforcemeitt orders, DOT has clarified that viclations of section 25 9.5 are 'vio’iaﬁ'on_s of Section 41712
specifically, not just 49 11.5.C. Subtitle VII generally. See, ¢.g., American dirlines; DOT Qrder 2017-7-9.

17 See DOT Order 2007-10-1 (July 23, 2007) in Docket DOT-08T-2007-28149.

5
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leaving others open with limited operations. British AuwayS' call centers did not re:mm to full
capacrty untﬂ appmxxmately August 2020. §

i , § (i.e., hours), when trying 0 get
through to &n aulme representatwe to submit refund requests, Although British Airways allowed
consumers to request refunds by email and via Facebook and Twitter, this was not advertised and
as such the Departiment beliéves many consumers fikely were not aware of the availability of
obtaining refunds in this manner. British Airways’ failure to maintain adequate functionality of
its custome,r service phone hnes led to extreme delays in consumers obtammg refunds that they

In addition, OACP’s investigation revealed that, from March to November 2020, British
Airways’ website contained contradictory and false information regarding refund options for
impacted consumers. Specifically, following flight cancellations and schedule changes,
consumers that logged into the aitline’s Manage My Booking webpage would se¢ a conspicuous
“Cancel and refimd flight(s)” biue button that linked to an online form. Howevet, consumers
could not request a refund by completing this form. In a bullet point on the same Manage My
Booking webpage, there was a separate staternent directing consumers to ¢all British Airways to
get a refund. However, as explained above, many consumers were unable to reach British
Airways to request a refund if they called. Moreaver, many consumers rnay have overfooked the
bulleted statement or may not have understood it given the conspicuous “Cancel and refund
flight(s)” button, If a consumer did not see or did not understand this statement, clicked on the
refund button and submitted the online form with his or her information, the consumer would
receive a travel voucher instead of a refund. In addition, if the consumer later contacted the
airline after realizing that they had inadvertently requested a voucher instead of a refund, British
Alirways would deny those consumers refund requests by asserting that their voucher requests
were final and 1rrever31b} : i 2 -

1 ihidi We find Brmsh
Alrways’ practices and misrepresentations to be deceptive because consumers were led to an
online option for requesting and aceepting vouchers when they were trying to obtain refunds.
The infotmation was misleading to consumers acting reasonably under the circumstances and
was material to consumers,

Response

agserts that these complaints must be viewed in the context of the
unprecedented gio al heal pandemic and the resulting astronomical number of flight
cancellations, which caused operational and personnel challenges. British Airways states it was
forced to closs two of its five call centers at the start of the pandemic because governmental
restrictions forced it to—immediately and without warning. British Airways states that in
response, and to meet the heightened demand, British Airways: quickly equipped employees to
work from home when possible; repurposed employees and retrained them fo perform customer
telations fanctions (including refunds); lengthened the hours of employees who could do
complex booking changes; and gegvel 3

E e

Oneé call center reopened in April and the other in early May

6
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British Airways believes its hard work and efforts worked and disagrees it “failed to maintain
adequate functionality of its customer service phone Hnes” or that there were “excessive wait
times” and certainly not ones that were hours long. British Airways assetts that notwithstanding
the unpr ecedented and severe operational impact of the pandemic, it believes that customers
were, in fact, able to get through to customer setvice agents and did not face long hold times, and
it asserts that there were only two months—March and April 2020, in'the initial chaos of the
pandemic—when the average telephone wait time exceeded ten minutes and none where it was
“hours”, British Airways states that in May 2020, the call centet that handled over 71 percent of
British Airways U.S. customer call volume answered 93 perce t of calls eued from U S -based
CllStOlﬂelS, with an average wait time of only 1.8 minutes

British Airways disagrees that its website was false and misleading regarding refund options and
that its practices and statements were deceptive or misleading. British Airways asserts that it
made it clear that passengers whose flights were cancelled due to Covid could obtain a refund
and the voucher application on the website made clear that it applied to vouchers, rather than to
refunds. British Airways does not agree reasonable customers would have been confused.

British Airways agserts that passengers were able to obtal

nd
mcludmg by emaﬂ and via Facebook and Twitter.

ultiple avenues,

British Airways asserts its records refute that passengers were unable to obtain refunds or were
effectively denied them:

s British Airways states it issued more than 2.8 million refunds systemwide in 2020, which
in British Airways’ view demonstrates that obtaining a refund was not unduly difficult
and that customers were not effectively denied refunds.

« British Airways states it refunded 69 percent of tickets on cancelled flights to or from the
United States between March 1, 2020 and February 28, 2021 and paid more than
US$ 763 million in refunds. In contrast, British Airways states just under. 12 percent of
the total number of customers whose flights were cancelled obtained vouchers. In British
Airways” view, the fact that almost 70 percent of customers were able to get refunds
demonstrates that it was not unduly difficult to get refunds.

o British Airways states during the period from March 2020 through the end of December
2021, British Airways also refunded over $40,000,000 to customers who had non-
refundable tickets for flights to or from the United States who chose not to travel and for
whom British Airways had no legal obligation to refund.

British Airways disputes that passengers were unable to obtain a refund; many customers
selected a voucher because they wanted one, and a significant percentage of custorhers who

7
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selected a voucher have now used them. British Airways asserts the rate of voucher use by
passengers confirms that British Airways did not force or mislead passengers to take vouchers.

Decision

' ofét_?‘U S.C.§41712a d14 CF[@PartZSQ.

violations described hel ein and serves the pubhc mterest It estabhshes a strorzg detenent to
future similar unlawful practices by British Airways and other carriees.

This otder is issued under the authority contained in 49 CFR Part 1.
ACCORDINGLY,

1. Based on the above discussion, we approve this settlement and the provisions of this
order ag being in the public interest;

2. We find that by effectively denying British Airways customers the ability to request
refunds for-several months for flights to or from the United States that British Airways
cancelled or significantly changed, British Airways significantly delayed or denied the
payment of required refunds and engaged In an unfair practice in violation of 49 U.S.C. §
41712;

0f49US C. §41712

4. We find that by misleading consumers regarding refund options on its website following
flight cancellations and significant schedule changes by the carrier, British Airways
engaged in a deceptive practice in violation of 49 U.S.C. § 41712;

5. We order British Airways and its successors and assigns to cease and desist from further
violations of 49 U.S.C. § 41712 and 14 CFR 259.5;

6. We assess British Airways $1,100,000 in compromise of civil penalties that might
otherwise be assessed for the viclations described in paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 above; Of this
total amount, $550,000 shall be due and payable within 60 days of the issuarice of the
order, The remaining $550,000 shall be eredited to British Airways for refunds that
British Airways voluntarily provided to passengers with non-refundable tickets for flights

8
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to or from the United States who chose not to travel and were not entitled to refunds
under U.S. law;

7. We order British Alrways to pay within 60 days of the issuance of this order the penalty
assessed in ordering paragraph 6, above, through Pay.gov to the account of the U.S.
Treasuty, Payment shall be inade in accordance with the instructions contained in the
Attachment to this order. Failure to pay the penalty as ordered shall subject British
Airways to the assessment of interest, penalty, and collection charges under the Debt
Collection Act and to further enforcement action for failing to comply with this order.

BY:

BLANE A. WORKIE
Assistant General Counsel
for the Office of Aviation Consumer Protection

An electronic version of this document is available at
www, regulations.goy

9
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5:40 w3 LTE €

4 MANAGE MY FLIGHT —
Scheduled 18:05 Scheduled 1015

Dulayed 18:43 O e 10:55

Seat
- Gate 7
My baggage updates

Booking reference WXLIM2H

Operated by British Airways

Number of stops

Fight dwation  hi0m
Aiseraft |  BoeingT77jet
ﬁﬁgﬁmmmbe? e e gggumgg@?ggg(}g

Other flights in this booking

London to Grand Cayman \

BADZSS - 24 jun 2023 - 10:20 {

£ Nanage My Booking

Smaris
RESNH

Send email - Add to calendar
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L};}_E* ien@candw.ky

From; Great Western Railway <greatwesternrailway@e.gwr.com>
Sent: Sunday, June 18, 2023 12:06 PM
Tao; jbodden@candw,ky
Subject: Night Riviera | Before you go
* Carttsea the piiures? Viaw ol ors:
Take comfort with the
— Night Riviera Sleeper
1
£2023-0212
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Thank you for hooking a journey on the Night Riviera Slesper to
Penzance, Wa're delighted that you'll be travelling with us. We ook
forward to seeing you very soon.

Your journey

~5.Tuesday, June 29 2(}§3
me 3 T{:
London Paddington -~ . Penzance -

I*Tﬁ? Smgie L
. W {;hanges 0

You' ii just nee:i

E The payment E}ai’(ﬁ yz:u uaad te; bu;y ihe imkeﬁ ;_:

'E}"’,} Yeur Radcard af yeu bmakeﬁi wi‘i‘h s:srra _. ' .'

O ﬁﬁ* use yﬁur mabi[e tmkeﬁ n“iaka sure yﬁu ve é&miaad&é the G@R
'ﬁiﬁp Fmd aut more here T _ _ e

2
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| Log i for mors from GWR - . . .
You carlog into your account bere. Your usemame Ts simply the smail address that we seof this emalt to, if
you have frgotien yﬁuf_passwc;rﬁkyﬁu canTesetithers. ;

3
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Royal Cambridge Hotel Deposit Receipt
124.126 Bussex Gardens

Hyde Parls

London

Tigited Kingdom

WaluB

Qe 873 0000

0207 873 0830

www hotelioyalecambridgs.com.

cambridgehotel@btconnset.com

Contact Name: Book Ref: BEOIR106
Contect Address PO Ref

Status Degeription Confirmed
Yend Cuest Name  John Bodden

Room No Avrival ' Depariure Raeveived Pay Type Gross Total Recelved By

404 20/0en/2023 21/ uel2023 21 anl2023 VISA 2100 SAMUEL
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From;
Sent:
To:
Subject:

British Airways Customer Services <BA CustSves@email ba.coms
Monday, June 26, 2023 4.04 PM

jbodden@candw.ky

Your British Arways.case refetence 25172123

BRITISH AIRWAYS

Thank you, we're on the case.

Dear Cusiomer, Case reference number ;
25172123

Thank you for telling us aboutyour issue. |

B YESHOH _{% f’lﬁ?ﬁ’%ﬁ%ﬁ%‘ @% wfﬁ alnts §§s§ i}a&ki@ gm; 'agzsszms &bp«i}&ﬁiﬁg

if you've been waiting & while, and would ke to update your case please use this link and enter
your case ref, which you will find at the fop.of this emall, in the first box:

Onee you receive a reply, please be aware, this might drop to your junk/spam folder - please
chack this before sendirig a follow Up to your case.

If you are sending expanse receipts or supporting documents by post as part of a claim, or
heed to contact us for any other reason, vou'll find our office address and contact details hera:

British Alrways Customer Relafions contacts

Don't forget to quote vour case refarence numbar which is at the top of this email,

We take pride in providing the very highest standards of customer servics and are sorry that we
fell short on this occasion. We hope we can make it up to you.

Yours 8incerely,

British Airways Customer Services

1
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jbo n@candw.ky

From: British Alrways <gImba[customerre[atxonsnoresponse@crm ha.com>
Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023°9'51 AM

To: ibodden@candw.ky

Subject: Thank you for bearing with us

fyol ara ynalils to see the message below, <lick hare to view,

Dear Mr Bodden,
Case Referencei 25172123
Thanks for your patience while we look into your case.

#;};"?‘{fﬁsmmer'&etatians team_ara really: busy at the moment; which méans it's
toget back toyou with a full fesponse; Please rest

If you need to update any information onyour case, you can do this befow,
We fook farward to speaking with you soon,

British Alrways

. L
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From; British Alrways <globalcustomerrelationsnoresponse@crm.ba.com»
Sent: Friday, July 28,2023 3:40 PM

To: jbodden@candw.ky

Subject: We'll be on the case soan

Hyoy arg unable to see the message below, dlick heee toview,

Dear Mr Bodden,
Case Reference; 25172123

Wwe're sorty we've not been back in touch about your Custormer Relations case
indwe appreciate your patience,

We know you've been waiting for a response now for 28 days, but please rest

ired we haven't forgotten about your tase ahd we'll be'in touch as soon as

we can. If you need to update any information on your case, you can do this
below,

Please accept our apologies again, we look forward to speaking with you soon.

British Alrways

_ ) _
52023-0212 Page 52 of 57 2023-09-12



Exhibi10D
$2023-0212 m Page 53 of 57 2023-09-12

From: British Airways <globalcustomerrelationsnoresponse@crm.ba.com>
Sent: Friday, Algust4, 2023 539 AM

Ta: jbodden@candw.ky

Subject: Sorryyou'e still waiting

I you are unable to see the message halow, dick higre toview,

Dear Mr Bodden,
Case Reference; 25172123

We're really sorry you're still waiting for a response from us, We know [t's been a

long time since you contacted us and this Isn't the service you should expect.

Our Customer Relations team are working axtremely hard to respond to you as
soon as possible, but in the meantime, if you need to update any information on
your case, you can do this below.

Thank you for your continued patience and we look forward to speaking with
you sooh.

British Alrways

1
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From: British Airways Customer Relations <gsrréplies@contact. brltlshalrways com>
Sent: Manday; August 7, 2023 10526 AM
To: Jbodden@candw.ky
Subject: Your Respotise from BA Custorher Relations

*Eplease don't hit ‘reply’—we Wor't receive it if you need to get in touch, please use the link at the
bottom of the email**

BRITISH AIRWAYS

Dear John Patrick

Your feedback to British Airways

We'te very sory o Hear you had sbine techriical issugs With booking your flight onling: We understand
the impact this had, so | can understand why you needed to bring this matter to our attention. We'd
alsarlike to'thank you foryo SiwhilEweagot back id voin

We take all reasonable measures to avoid disruption to a flight and we always consider if there are any
other alternative solutions before we make a decision. The delay was out of aur control and caused
unforeseen disruption to ourschedule.

We know booking a flight quickly and easily is important to our customers so thank you for taklﬂg the
time to te[l us about thls We reldzsa;:xpo‘ sdwedidny : it

COIfitHents wrth m\f

If you have a similar problem with booking a future flight, please call us straight away on 1-800-247-
9297 and we'll be happy to help you there and then. | realise this doesn’t charige the Tssues you had at

the time.

I'véehecked piit tedors dc Tt ent. The travel
dgent that made your baoking with is the "owner" ofyour réservations and is respo sible for helping
you before or during your journey, as part of your contract with them. This should include making any
changes you heed, correcting a ticket if there's a spelling miistake in a name, or cancelling your tickets if
you're unable to travel, as well as providing other travel advice and adding service requests.

For any:applicable refuhd, I'd stiggest you to contactyour travel agent.directly;

Once again, please accept our apologies for your experience this time. We hope to welcome you back on
board soon.

Best regards

1
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ibo. sn@candw.ky ' '
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From: British Aitways Customer Services <BA.CustSves@email.ba.com>
Sent: Wedtiesday, Auguist 9, 2023 10:26 AM
To: jbodden@candw.ky
Subject: Your British Airways case raferénce 25403902

BRITISH AIRWAYS

Thank you, we're on the case.,

Dear Customer, Case reference number
25403902

Thank you for tefling us about your issus.

deeptionally high wolinmies, sa vVou inlght Bave fo weit 4 while Tar
o (et back i vou agson o8 possible,

Wiz mre urrently exarenting &
& Feshonde, howsver, we wiltal

If you've been waiting a while, and would like to update your case please use this link and enter
your case ref, which you will find at the top of this email, in the first box;

(nee you recelve a reply, please be aware, this might drop to your junk/spam folder — please
check this before sending a foliow up 1o your case.

Ifyou are sending expense receipts or supporting documents by post as part of a claim, or
nieed to contact us for any other reason, you'll find our offive address and.contact details here:

Brifish Airways Customer Relations contacts

Don't forget io quote your case reference nimber which is at the fop of this email,

We take pride in providing the very highest standards of customer service and are sorry that we
fell short on this cocasion. We hope we can make it up fo you,

Yours Sincerely,

British Airways Customer Services

i
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jbo. :n@candw.ky
From: British Airways Customer Relations <gsrreplies@contact.britishairways.coms>
Sent: Sunday, Alguist 27,2023 3:10 AM
To: jbodden@candw.ky
Subject: Your Rasponse from BA Custorner Relations

**Please:DO NOT reply direcily to'this'email by using the reply’ function on your personal gmail
‘ 5, 95 if WILL NOT be received. -{f Vou wish to'send Us a feply‘please use the link at'the hottom of

BRITISH AIRWAYS
Dear John Patrick
An update from British Airways

. Thank you for coming back to us about your refund.

We do undarstand how strongly you feal about this. Wher a customer has any kind of concern, we
share the feedback through the arganisatlon, and focus on what we can do to aveld the Issue happening
in the future,

yi - vour flight, vou wete fiarked 4sa 'No Show, In'such a scenario the refund is
calcu!ated as per the are rules of your ticket: This means vou are entitled for a refund of taxes, fess and
charges that you paid, less a reasonable service fee.

t've cheéked ourtecords and can see that, yol've hoked yallr tickets thraligh s travel 486Ht. The travel
agent that made your bocking with is the "owner" of your reservations and is responsible for helping
you before or during your journey, as part of your contract with them. This should include making any
changes you need, correcting a ticket if there's a spelling mistake in a name, or cancealling your tickets if
you're unable to travel, as well as providing other travel advice and adding service reguasts.

Fot arty applicable refund, I'd suggast you to contact your travel agent directly.

| hope to hear from you soon.

Best regards

Yl gase referénc' 25172123

Please use the following link to send us a reply and quote your case reference 25172123 in any
correspondence with us: replyta.ma.ba

1
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an@candw

! b? ﬁ Zneecanc i U

From: British Airways Customer Relations <gsrreplies@contact.britishairways.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 6, 2023 11:52 PM

To: jbodden®@candw.ky

Subject: Your Response from BA Customer Relations

**Please don't hit reply’ ~ we won't receive it: If you need to get in touch, please use the link at the
bottom of the email**

BRITISH AIRWAYS

Dear John Patrick

Your feedback to British Airways.

We're sorry you experienced prablems when you travelled with us recently. We'd also like to thank you
for your patience while we got back to you ahout this,

Funderstand that you were unhappy with our policy on refunds. Like all airlines, we do have policies to
guide us in our decisions, as this helps us t6 be more consistent, it also helps us to be clearer about what
you canh expect of us, while still belng far to each individual customer.

When vou bosk a flight with us and fail'to thavel of it'for aiy reasons, you will beamarked a8 ano show
ﬂn that f!lght Hence, the refund under such a scenario is calculated as per our fare rules.

We always use customer feedback to help us shape or review our policies. Feedback helps us to
understand what works hest for our {:ustmmars, and balance that with what we need to do to keep our
bussness runmng we!i 1’. e e re urscomments ‘with niycolleaguesin the relevant feam, and

were hopmg and l’m sorrv we c_:ould_n t _be _mo_;’e heip thls trma

Once again, please accept our apologies for your experience on this trip.
Best regards

Anjali Pramod Sharma

British Airways Custorner Relations

Your case reference is:25172123

Please use the following link to send us a reply and quote your case reference 25172123 in any
carrespondence with us; replyto.me.ba

*+plaase do not send payment éard details via email®*

1
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